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          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: It's 1:09, we're

          3  nine minutes later for the Government Ops meeting.

          4  Welcome to the hearing of the Governmental Ops

          5  Committee. I am Simcha Felder. I'm the Chair of the

          6  Committee. And I am joined by may colleague,

          7  Councilman Addabbo, who is with me here to my left.

          8                 Before I go into further detail about

          9  the subject of today's hearing, I'd like to thank

         10  the Committee's City Legislative Affairs Liaison,

         11  Jamelia Nathan. Are you here? Can you stand up? I

         12  can't see you.

         13                 Is she here? Oh, okay. I just wanted

         14  to thank Jamelia Nathan for all her hard work during

         15  the Committee's Executive Budget hearing on May

         16  22nd.

         17                 I think I have repaid my debt to you

         18  and now you can stop harassing me when you see me in

         19  the halls about how much I owe you for making things

         20  run smoothly. You did actually make things run very

         21  smoothly and we appreciate that very, very much.

         22                 I must say I am very disappointed in

         23  your work today, because the Administration is not

         24  agreeing with us. If there is anything you can do

         25  between now and the next minute or two when I finish
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          2  to change that, we would appreciate that.

          3                 I'd also like to acknowledge the

          4  staff of the Committee and thank all of you for your

          5  hard work.

          6                 To my right is DeNora Johnson, the

          7  Counsel to the Committee. And to my immediate left

          8  is Mike Asertano (phonetic), who is my legislative

          9  aide, and to my far left, Sheila. Sheila Horgan, who

         10  is the Policy Analyst. I appreciate all your work.

         11                 We've been joined by Council Member

         12  Peter Vallone, Jr., who has a Snapple and a healthy

         13  Granola bar, since the Daily News did a story on

         14  what a healthy person he is. I'll get his attention

         15  soon. Don't worry.

         16                 Today the Committee will hear

         17  comments regarding Intro. No. 260, which was

         18  introduced by Speaker Quinn.

         19                 Briefly, Intro. 260 seeks to provide

         20  legal protections for all persons that testify at

         21  New York City Council hearings. While we are aware

         22  that there are other laws that provide some

         23  protection for witnesses that testify at Council

         24  hearings, we do not believe that those laws provide

         25  sufficient protection for witnesses.
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          2                 So, it's good, but it's not good

          3  enough. We want to make it better. That's the

          4  purpose of this bill.

          5                 The bill would provide the necessary

          6  protection for those that have a sense of civic

          7  commitment and dedication to the government, and

          8  ensure the integrity of the Council's investigation

          9  and oversight process, specifically Intro. 260 would

         10  accomplish that goal by including a civil remedy for

         11  aggrieved employees.

         12                 Accordingly, this Committee looks

         13  forward to hearing the testimony from witnesses

         14  scheduled to testify today. Which reminds me, that

         15  if you are planning to testify today and have not

         16  signed up yet to testify, please see the

         17  Sergeant-At-Arms, who is sitting all the way to the

         18  left with two dozen cups on his desk. If you need a

         19  drink of water, there's the gentleman in the back.

         20                 Before we begin the formal testimony

         21  -- no, we will begin the formal testimony. I'd like

         22  to call Commissioner Rose Gill Hearn as our first

         23  witness. And we welcome you.

         24                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Thank you.

         25  Good morning, Chairperson Felder, Council Members
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          2  Vallone and Addabbo, members of the Committee on

          3  Government Operations, thank you for the opportunity

          4  to address the Committee concerning Intro. No. 260,

          5  entitled"A Local Law to amend the New York City

          6  Charter in relation to enhancing legal protections

          7  for persons that testified before hearings of the

          8  Council.

          9                 DOI has a particular interest in this

         10  legislation because as you know, we are responsible

         11  for investigation involving New York City government

         12  and operations and for enforcing the existing City's

         13  Whistleblower Law, which includes investigating any

         14  possible violations thereof.

         15                 The Whistleblower Law, which was

         16  recently expanded by the Council protects City

         17  employees who make good faith reports of known

         18  fraud, corruption, abuse of authority, gross

         19  mismanagement or conflicts of interest to DOI or to

         20  the City Council, the Comptroller or the Public

         21  Advocate, all of whom must refer such reports to

         22  DOI.

         23                 The Whistleblower Law is a crucial

         24  tool in the City's efforts to thwart corruption in

         25  government, since the majority of complaints
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          2  received by DOI come from City workers who are in

          3  the best position to observe wrongdoing in City

          4  government.

          5                 At the same time, the law provides

          6  protection only when the employee is reporting on a

          7  matter he or she actually knows or has reason to

          8  believe involved corruption et al, that in some way

          9  pertains to the City.

         10                 Thus, DOI worked closely with the

         11  Council to increase the scope and effectiveness of

         12  the law.

         13                 DOI has engaged in an aggressive

         14  public information campaign to further increase the

         15  effectiveness of the law.

         16                 DOI's education efforts have

         17  included, among other things, training of City

         18  employees about protections afforded them under the

         19  Whistleblower Law.

         20                 Since I have been the DOI

         21  Commissioner, DOI has conducted Whistleblower

         22  protection and corruption awareness lectures in

         23  virtually every City agency, as well as the Public

         24  Advocate and Comptroller's Offices.

         25                 Accordingly, I come to speak to the
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          2  Council today as a dedicated supporter of the

          3  efforts to encourage and protect whistleblowers, and

          4  in that spirit, I want to voice several concerns

          5  that I have about the language and scope of Intro.

          6  260.

          7                 While clearly well intentioned, it

          8  raises from DOI's perspective, several significant

          9  concerns. In particular, we fear that it is so

         10  broadly drafted, that it actually works against the

         11  public interest, rather than in furtherance of it.

         12                 In addition, we are concerned that in

         13  some respects it could inadvertently compromise the

         14  effectiveness of DOI's investigative efforts.

         15                 Accordingly, I am here today to urge

         16  the Council to not pass this bill.

         17                 Among DOI's concerns is the broad

         18  language of proscription that no person may

         19  threaten, harass or intimidate another person or

         20  take an adverse personnel action against them

         21  because of, or to prevent testimony, before this

         22  Council.

         23                 We emphatically agree that no one

         24  should be harassed or intimidated as a result of, or

         25  to prevent testimony for the Council in good faith
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          2  about matters of public interest.

          3                 The City's existing Whistleblower Law

          4  is limited to protections for just this type of good

          5  faith speech, made in furtherance of the City's

          6  interest, while not protecting employees who simply

          7  come forward with an agenda or an axe to grind

          8  against a co-worker, a neighbor, a supervisor or a

          9  competitor.

         10                 By contrast, the language of Intro.

         11  260, as written, does not simply offer the type of

         12  carefully crafted and targeted protection as the

         13  City's Whistleblower Law, rather it is so broad that

         14  it cloaks with protection anyone who comes before

         15  the Council for any statement they utter in front of

         16  the Council.

         17                 This means that someone who in their

         18  testimony improperly reveals legally privileged,

         19  personally sensitive, and/or otherwise confidential

         20  information retained by the government or a private

         21  business would be protected for doing so.

         22                 Such confidential information could

         23  include, for example, medical information such as

         24  the HIV status of an individual, attorney/client

         25  privilege matters, or proprietary information.
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          2                 And Intro. 260 creates legal tensions

          3  because the revelation of that confidential

          4  information could potentially violate other laws for

          5  a City agency's rules of conduct or a private sector

          6  employee's employment contract and could potentially

          7  subject the public or private sector employer to

          8  legal sanctions and possible damages by virtue of

          9  the improper disclosure.

         10                 Under Intro. 260, the employer of

         11  this individual would not be able to take

         12  appropriate and otherwise lawful action to prevent

         13  this testimony or to discipline the employee after

         14  the fact for having given the testimony.

         15                 While occurrences of the improper

         16  disclosure of confidential, sensitive or defamatory

         17  information, would hopefully be rare, surely the

         18  Council does not intend to confer blanket immunity

         19  from appropriate action by an employer in response

         20  to an employee who seeks to come before you and

         21  testify in such an improper manner.

         22                 DOI is concerned with the effects of

         23  such a broad grant of immunity provided by Intro.

         24  260 to anyone who comes forward and says anything

         25  about anyone on any subject without regard to basis,
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          2  veracity, legality or even subject matter of these

          3  statements.

          4                 While DOI steadfastly works to

          5  protect the rights of whistleblowers, we are equally

          6  zealous in ensuring that private individuals and

          7  public figures alike are not improperly tarred with

          8  the fact that an allegation has been made.

          9                 Thus, we pursue our investigations

         10  confidentially, and with the utmost discretion as we

         11  are well aware that a false allegation against

         12  someone can be as damning as a conviction of crime.

         13                 Intro. 260 we fear would allow, if

         14  not encourage, the unscrupulous to come before the

         15  Council and make false, unsupported and

         16  unsupportable allegations, and at the same time

         17  protect those people from their utterances.

         18                 We assure you from experience that is

         19  not an unrealistic concern. Such a consequence would

         20  not further the public interest, and we do not

         21  believe that this was the intent of the Council in

         22  proposing this bill.

         23                 By contrast, the City's Whistleblower

         24  Law, as I mentioned above, protects the City

         25  employee who make good faith statements that they
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          2  know or have a reasonable belief, involve fraud,

          3  corruption, abuse of authority, gross mismanagement,

          4  or conflicts of interest.

          5                 In addition, there are New York State

          6  Whistleblower Laws that provide protection from

          7  retaliation but have similar limitations. For

          8  example, Civil Service Law, Section 75-B, which

          9  applies to all government employees, federal, City

         10  and State, already provides protection against

         11  retaliation, but restricts its protections to the

         12  disclosure of violations of a law, rule or

         13  regulation that endanger public health or safety or

         14  governmental action that the employee reasonably

         15  believe constitute improper governmental action.

         16                 Similarly, Labor Law Section 740

         17  which applies to workers in the private sector, as

         18  well as government employees, protects the person

         19  who discloses or threatens to disclose to a

         20  supervisor or a public body activity, policy or

         21  practice of the employer that is in violation of

         22  law, rule or regulation, where the violation

         23  presents a substantial and specific danger to the

         24  public health and safety, or where the employee

         25  testifies about such a policy or practice, or where
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          2  the employee refuses to participate in such a policy

          3  or practice.

          4                 In addition to these City and State

          5  laws are a myriad of federal laws, that contain

          6  significant whistleblower protections, including the

          7  Occupational Safety and Health Act, the False Claims

          8  Act, and the Whistleblower Protection Act.

          9                 However, in every instance, these

         10  federal laws do not provide a blanket immunity from

         11  retaliation for the speakers, but rather tie the

         12  protection afforded to the subject of the speech at

         13  issue.

         14                 The significance of these existing

         15  statutes is two-fold:

         16                 One, these statutes already protect

         17  persons who come before the City Council; and

         18                 Two, the appropriate limitations set

         19  forth in the scope of these statutes ensures that

         20  whistleblowers who speak out in the public interest

         21  in appropriate forums and given broad protection for

         22  their speech. But none of these laws protect or

         23  encourage inappropriate disclosures.

         24                 We strongly urge the Council not to

         25  do that here with its proposed new law.
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          2                 DOI is also concerned that the

          3  proposed bill will undercut the effectiveness of

          4  DOI's main mission, which is to investigate

          5  wrongdoing, waste, et cetera, in New York City

          6  government.

          7                 In order to do that, the City

          8  recognized long ago it needed to obligate municipal

          9  employees to come to DOI with any information that

         10  they have about misconduct in City government. They

         11  are subject to disciplinary sanctions if they fail

         12  to come forward, but they are protected by the

         13  City's Whistleblower Law and they do.

         14                 So, it is a very effective balance.

         15  And the fact is that many municipalities do not have

         16  a statutory scheme; that is, that employees must

         17  come forward, but they will be protected when they

         18  do so.

         19                 We receive approximately 12,000

         20  reports, tips, complaints, each year, most of which

         21  are from City employees. Thus, the current system

         22  combines mandatory behavior with a mechanism for

         23  protecting the employees and so is effective in

         24  ensuring that DOI receives critical information of

         25  misconduct that might otherwise be hidden because of
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          2  fear of retaliation.

          3                 However, DOI is concerned that the

          4  broad protections from retaliation that Intro. 260

          5  purports to offer City employees would encourage

          6  potential City Whistleblowers to come to the Council

          7  and make public statements in addition to or even

          8  rather than coming to DOI and make required

          9  disclosures.

         10                 In addition to the tension that

         11  creates with existing reporting obligations,

         12  confusion regarding what reporting obligations the

         13  City employees have, such an occurrence would also

         14  have a potentially devastating consequence for the

         15  effectiveness of DOI's investigations, because the

         16  confidentiality of these investigations is most

         17  often critical to their success.

         18                 A recent DOI investigation of

         19  Medicaid fraud dramatically demonstrates this fact.

         20  In that case, DOI received a confidential tip of

         21  alleged wrongdoing by a single individual at HRA.

         22                 Because that individual did not know

         23  that her activities were under scrutiny, DOI was

         24  able to conduct a covert investigation, of her

         25  conduct. That investigation ultimately resulted in
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          2  the discovery of a massive Medicaid fraud ring that

          3  had been costing the taxpayers millions of dollars

          4  and resulted in the arrests of eight City employees

          5  and eight of their private sector co-conspirators,

          6  as well as substantial recommendations for changes

          7  in agency policies and procedures that should

          8  prevent future looting of the public treasury.

          9                 Much of this would not have occurred

         10  had the initial tip come to DOI in the form of

         11  public testimony. Thus, DOI would like to preserve

         12  the current system, as it applies to City employees

         13  which requires them to come to DOI with their

         14  information and protects them from retaliation by

         15  the City's Whistleblower Law.

         16                 Lastly, while Intro. 260 contains

         17  criminal and civil penalties for its violation, it

         18  does not specify or contemplate an enforcement

         19  mechanism. Under the City's Whistleblower Law, it is

         20  DOI's mandate to investigate whether adverse

         21  personnel action occurred or within the City agency,

         22  and if so, whether such action was in retaliation

         23  for protected conduct within the meaning of the law.

         24                 These are by no means easy or

         25  perfunctory investigations. Rather, they often
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          2  require significant amounts of agency time and

          3  resources to investigate properly. They necessitate

          4  delving into what happened to the person within

          5  their agency or their unit of their agency. Many

          6  people have to be interviewed. The person's

          7  experience and history within the agency has to be

          8  analyzed. Presumably an investigation of a violation

          9  of Intro. 260 by a non-City employer would need to

         10  be similarly thorough.

         11                 Certainly, DOI, with its already

         12  thinly spread resources, would not be in a position

         13  to undertake such investigations with respect to the

         14  countless number of non-City employers.

         15                 At this time, I would be pleased to

         16  answer any questions that the Chairperson or members

         17  of the Committee may have.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         19  much. I thank you for your testimony and I listened

         20  to most of it. I know I'm supposed to make believe I

         21  listened to everything but I didn't. I listened to

         22  most of it. And a lot of it is very interesting, and

         23  I just want to mention that the purpose of this

         24  bill, it's not a done deal yet, we would appreciate

         25  very much if you could put in writing specifics that
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          2  you think could tighten up the bill. You mentioned

          3  at some point I think on page two, you talked about

          4  situations that it would work against the public

          5  interest, and the fact that in some cases that it

          6  would inadvertently compromise the effectiveness of

          7  DOI. You also talked about the questions of

          8  enforcement. So, if you have any suggestions of the

          9  issues you raised, about how the bill can be

         10  tightened up, other than just getting rid of it, you

         11  know, then we would like to have that. Because we

         12  would like to take your comments into consideration

         13  in trying to make this bill a better bill, rather

         14  than just saying we want it the way it is, and too

         15  bad. So that's one.

         16                 The bill that we are considering, you

         17  know, the City's Whistleblower Law, does not protect

         18  private sector employees whatsoever; is that true?

         19                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: It is true.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: It is true.

         21  Again, if you have -- all right, I'll ask you

         22  questions and questions and the ones you don't want

         23  to answer, just say I don't want to answer them.

         24                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Of course.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, do you
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          2  believe that the City has a role, should have a

          3  role, a greater role, in trying to protect that

          4  portion of the population that's not covered by the

          5  Whistleblower Law?

          6                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: I believe,

          7  as I mentioned --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Is the mike on?

          9                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Oh.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Talk into it.

         11                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Yes, it's

         12  on.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Now it's good.

         14                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Sorry about

         15  that.

         16                 As we said at the outset, we have a

         17  strong interest in people coming forward regardless

         18  of who they are who know of problems in City

         19  government, private sector, public sector, City,

         20  State, federal, the fact is that most people who

         21  come forward are City employees, as I mentioned. But

         22  with respect to the population of people who were

         23  not City employees, yes, we want them to come

         24  forward, and there are laws beyond the City

         25  Whistleblower Law to protect people from retaliation
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          2  for coming forward. I cited a couple of them in my

          3  testimony, which was prepared somewhat quickly, but

          4  there are, in addition to those statutes that I

          5  cite, additional statutes that protect any person

          6  coming before the Council from retaliation under

          7  certain circumstances.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, you listed

          9  some of the laws that exist. I would guess that you

         10  listed those laws to suggest that there are many

         11  federal and State laws in addition to the City's

         12  Whistleblower Law already, and that that should do

         13  the trick.

         14                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Yes. I mean,

         15  it wasn't just a quantity exercise. I selected the

         16  ones that I think are really most powerful and

         17  significant and applicable toward protecting people

         18  who come before the Council from the private sector.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Right. But on the

         20  other hand, it wasn't a set-up. Because if it was, I

         21  would have told you.

         22                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: When I asked

         24  whether you would consider making suggestions to

         25  tighten this bill, you were kind enough to agree.
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          2                 That would seem to indicate to me

          3  that although there exists already many bills to

          4  protect those that want to come forward, this bill

          5  provides greater protection to employees by

          6  eliminating additional risk of retaliation, by their

          7  employers, so you know, and even furthermore this

          8  approach would ensure that employers don't engage in

          9  fraud, or possibly a destruction of evidence

         10  relevant to an investigation.

         11                 So, I just want to know sort of, you

         12  know, if the discussion on your part, if you feel

         13  very strongly that there is no need for this bill

         14  whatsoever, or whether you think that, you know,

         15  there is some work that we can do, but you don't

         16  agree with all what we have crafted?

         17                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Let me take

         18  that in order.

         19                 I am happy to discuss this issue with

         20  you and your staff further, if you wish. I'm always

         21  happy to discuss issues, including serious and

         22  important issues that affect certainly the mission

         23  of my agency. So, yes, I take you up on your

         24  invitation to do that. And will, of course,

         25  coordinate with our colleague from legislative
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          2  affairs and her colleagues.

          3                 So, I will do that, and I pledge to

          4  do that with you, to have any discussion you want

          5  about these different issues raised by your proposed

          6  legislation, one.

          7                 Two, I do think that this bill is

          8  superfluous to existing protections in City, State

          9  and federal law, laws that exist already to protect

         10  people already. And because I think it's

         11  superfluous, Council Member, I think that the

         12  pitfalls that it creates, the second route that it

         13  creates for City employees to come, not to me, but

         14  here, is sufficiently of concern to me that the bill

         15  ought not go forward.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. I

         17  appreciate your being so direct, as usual. And

         18  that's a compliment, because some of your colleagues

         19  that come before the Council, it usually takes them

         20  about a half an hour to answer the question.

         21                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Oh, okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, I appreciate

         23  it very, very much.

         24                 So, I'm just going to recap in my

         25  mind, and I'm not an attorney, I'm just going to
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          2  recap in my mind what you said.

          3                 It seems that you said that the bill

          4  can really -- I'll say it my way, can be put in the

          5  garbage, you know, if there's really no necessity

          6  for the bill whatsoever.

          7                 But if we insist on going forward

          8  with a bill that is not necessary and could possibly

          9  be damaging or hurtful, then you would be willing to

         10  conspire with us, I don't know if that's a good

         11  word, but you would be willing to work with us to

         12  tighten up the bill.

         13                 You know, it's like saying, look, if

         14  you're convinced, that you're saying to us you're

         15  convinced that this bill is not superfluous, an it's

         16  not going to do what I say it's going to do, which

         17  is being -- you know, could be damaging, then if you

         18  want I'll give you some suggestions at least to make

         19  it less destructive.

         20                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: I think I

         21  understand your position.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I was quoting you

         23  in another way.

         24                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Oh, okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Was that a fair
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          2  assessment?

          3                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: My position

          4  is that the bill is superfluous and it's damaging to

          5  my extremely difficult mission of having to keep my

          6  finger on the pulse of what's going on throughout

          7  the City operation with my 250 people to help me.

          8                 I have in the last four and a half

          9  years encountered efforts at various stages for

         10  other folks to want to take over one role or another

         11  of DOI's, and I have laid my body down to cut off

         12  those tributaries so-to-speak, because I want the

         13  flow of information to continue to be to DOI, and I

         14  would like it because of the cases that I talked

         15  about, I gave you one example, the Medicaid fraud

         16  case, to come to us confidentially so we could

         17  undertake covert investigation and not have things

         18  be mentioned publicly and then the crime stops and

         19  you're never eradicated. I think that would be bad.

         20  So, that's why I think that the current statutory

         21  structure of must report to us and you'll be

         22  protected is an excellent one.

         23                 And I can tell you, and I have

         24  testified about this before Councilman Gioia in my

         25  budget testimony, that DOI, actually the City of New
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          2  York is quite unique in having those two sorts of

          3  companion statutory obligations, and cities from

          4  around the country, and countries from around the

          5  world, Baltics, Eastern Europe, and Asia, visit our

          6  agency for a couple of days, practically every month

          7  we have visitors from other states and from other

          8  countries who are coming here to learn about this

          9  scheme, this schematic that works so well, because

         10  they don't have it.

         11                 So, yes, I think it's not broken and

         12  let's not fix it.

         13                 That said, if you tell me that the

         14  Council would be insistent on going forward with a

         15  bill, I absolutely want to be looped in by you on

         16  that so that I can weigh in with my views and

         17  suggestions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, let me ask,

         19  would you be more amenable to this bill if it was

         20  limited solely to private employees?

         21                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: It's a

         22  somewhat crafty question and it is so because it's

         23  tempting to say that that would make it better, but

         24  you would still have situations where right here at

         25  this mike in this room with the public and the press
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          2  and the camera things would be disclosed that ought

          3  not be disclosed in the first instance here, but

          4  ought to come to DOI or be done in a different

          5  forum.

          6                 So, it would be better, but it still

          7  would not cure the problems that I foresee. And not

          8  to beat a dead horse, but as I've mentioned, private

          9  sector individuals coming before you already have

         10  various rights under the law against retaliation.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do you think, you

         12  mentioned about inappropriate disclosures, that it

         13  would interfere with the policies of the DOI under

         14  the Whistleblower Law, you mentioned in your

         15  testimony, is there anything, any kind of provisions

         16  that would be included that would prevent this, that

         17  you would think might prevent that?

         18                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Well, the

         19  Whistleblower Law that we have right now has a

         20  limitation with respect to what's protected, which

         21  is that the person speaking must know or have a

         22  reasonable belief that he or she knows of a corrupt

         23  practice in or related to the City agency or

         24  operation. That's the limitation in the current law.

         25                 And so what that doesn't protect is
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          2  someone coming in here and just defaming their boss

          3  or a disgruntled co-worker coming in and, you know,

          4  saying things that are just inflammatory and, you

          5  know, based on opinion are harmful in those ways,

          6  and it prevents people from the Health Department

          7  coming in and talking about confidential medical

          8  matters, or people from the Police Department coming

          9  in and talking about confidential security matters.

         10  I wouldn't want a DOI investigator coming before

         11  this Council and talking about the matters that we

         12  have under investigation with grand jury secrecy and

         13  wiretap secrecy and all of the other confidences

         14  that are in play with respect to my agency.

         15                 So, that's the system that we have

         16  now that would not protect that kind of disclosure,

         17  and people know it. And people know it because we go

         18  around town and we give lectures on this very

         19  subject. We tell people what they're protected in

         20  saying, and we tell people what their obligation is

         21  insofar as they have to report to us. And we've done

         22  that in every agency, and at the Public Advocate's

         23  Office and the Comptroller's Office. And I have

         24  offered for many, many years now to conduct

         25  whistleblower protection awareness lectures at the
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          2  City Council, because the existing City

          3  Whistleblower Law covers the Council and this is the

          4  only place where we have not given those lectures,

          5  despite offers to do so.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You know, I can't

          7  respond to that, but it sounds very interesting to

          8  me, and I'm going to discuss it with the Council,

          9  you know, the lawyers here, because I would be very

         10  interested in the training. And I think the Council

         11  would be interested in the training, but we

         12  appreciate your offer.

         13                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: That would

         14  be great. I wrote a letter to Speaker Quinn in

         15  January congratulating her on her appointment, and

         16  informing her of that fact and offering that

         17  invitation, and so I would appreciate it if you

         18  would renew that request.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, we have the

         20  counsel here, Robert Newman, and I think the summer

         21  may be a good time, when it's less busy, to take you

         22  up on that offer. So, I appreciate that very much.

         23                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Sure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I don't have any

         25  more questions. I just want to mention before you
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          2  leave, despite the fact that I don't agree with

          3  everything you said, and your compliments for my

          4  crafty questions, which I think they were, and I

          5  take it that way, that I personally have been very,

          6  very impressed with your, you know, agency under

          7  your leadership.

          8                 It has taken on new meaning, the DOI,

          9  as it existed under your leadership specifically,

         10  you know, for the few years that I've been in

         11  office, as a place that has impeccable integrity.

         12  That doesn't mean that everybody likes what you're

         13  doing, and probably the more they don't like it,

         14  more proof that what I'm saying is true.

         15                 So, even if we disagree about this

         16  bill, I just want to make it clear for the record

         17  that I think that the City has been very, very

         18  fortunate to have you running DOI, and the work that

         19  it has done over the years. So, we appreciate very

         20  much your testimony.

         21                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: And, yes, despite

         23  all my compliments the bill is not going away, and

         24  we would like your input through the process of

         25  tightening it up in the near future.

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 COMMISSIONER GILL HEARN: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, our next is

          5  I have a panel of there. Carmen Alvarez, Vice

          6  President of UFT, Jeremy A. Berman, the New York

          7  City Bar Association, and Doug Israel from Citizens

          8  Union. We need one more chair, unless somebody

          9  stands.

         10                 Whenever you're ready, just identify

         11  yourself for the record.

         12                 MS. ALVAREZ: Good afternoon, Chairman

         13  Felder, and members of the City Council's Government

         14  Operations Committee. I'm Carmen Alvarez, the Vice

         15  President of the United Federation of Teachers, and

         16  I am here today to express the UFT's very strong

         17  support of Introduction No. 260.

         18                 It should be beyond dispute that

         19  people have the right to offer their ideas to the

         20  City Council, or any of their representatives, for

         21  that matter, and that the City Council should not be

         22  impeded from doing its job by hearing the ideas of

         23  organizations and individuals who speak without fear

         24  of being punished for exercising their

         25  constitutional right.
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          2                 And in the first place it is a

          3  constitutional right to testify here, just as it is

          4  a constitutional right to offer testimony on a soap

          5  box in Union Square.

          6                 The First Amendment says, among other

          7  things, Congress shall make no law abridging the

          8  freedom of speech. For anyone to threaten, harass,

          9  or intimidate someone who offers testimony here is

         10  about as unAmerican an act as can be imagined.

         11                 It is inimical to the idea of freedom

         12  and democracy and the American way of life, and yet

         13  we know that it happens. And it happens a lot in the

         14  Department of Ed.

         15                 People in power often do have a way

         16  of forgetting about the country's ideals when they

         17  try to wield that power over their subordinates. An

         18  educator, for example, one of our members, who may

         19  face intimidation elsewhere, should never have to

         20  worry about coming here before you to testify.

         21                 How can you do your job properly if

         22  people are afraid to speak honestly at your

         23  hearings? Such intimidation is very close to witness

         24  tampering.

         25                 We are also glad that the Council
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          2  plans to add teeth to this legislation, making

          3  violators face the possibility of prison, as well as

          4  fines, and subjecting violators to additional civil

          5  penalties constitute appropriate deterrence.

          6                 We strongly supports the Council's

          7  efforts in this regard, and we look forward to

          8  adoption of this legislation. And our members will

          9  be eternally grateful for this support.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Normally I do a

         12  panel worth of testimony at a time, but if it's okay

         13  with your two colleagues, I just want to ask you one

         14  specific question.

         15                 MS. ALVAREZ: Sure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Is it your

         17  understanding that at this time, if the City Council

         18  does not do anything, right? We don't pass this law,

         19  your employees come in, teachers, to testify about

         20  something, are you saying -- no, that's not fair.

         21  Are they covered under the current laws?

         22                 MS. ALVAREZ: To my understanding, not

         23  with these kind of penalties, no. Because

         24  personally, I deal with special education, where we

         25  see a lot of violations, and a lot of intimidation
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          2  by administrator, and we're fighting that all the

          3  time. No, we have not -- I can tell you we don't

          4  feel protected.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I would ask,

          6  please, if, you know, at your earliest convenience,

          7  you were here during the testimony, and if you want

          8  a copy of it, I can give you a copy of it, if you

          9  don't have, if you can please write us specifically,

         10  respond to the things that were mentioned, so that

         11  -- especially the issue of whether there is any

         12  necessity for there to be any additional law,

         13  because we believe that what we're doing is right,

         14  but we certainly would like to have a clear

         15  response, not only from our lawyers, but from the

         16  people that work at the UFT and others that see the

         17  compelling reason as to why this is necessary, and

         18  why the laws that do exist are not enough, and maybe

         19  why the law will not in any way hamper effectiveness

         20  or jeopardize or anything else like that.

         21                 So, I'm asking you to do our work for

         22  us. That's what I'm asking you to do. We're going to

         23  do our own job, but it doesn't hurt if we can get

         24  some more help from you as well, we would appreciate

         25  that very much, in writing.
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          2                 MS. ALVAREZ: Yes, it would be our

          3  pleasure. And we do have the testimony, and that's

          4  exactly what we intend to do.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 MS. ALVAREZ: You're welcome.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Next.

          9                 MR. ISRAEL: Good afternoon, Chair

         10  Felder, members of the Governmental Operations

         11  Committee. I'm Doug Israel, the Public Policy and

         12  Advocacy Director with Citizens Union.

         13                 Citizens Union is a century old good

         14  government organization. We've consistently stood by

         15  the principles of an open and free democracy and

         16  government, one in which citizens are free to

         17  petition their government and play an active part in

         18  the political process.

         19                 This freedom naturally includes the

         20  freedom and ability to testify at hearings of the

         21  City Council.

         22                 We support the efforts if the City

         23  Council to help ensure that those that testify, or

         24  those who would like to are able to do so willingly

         25  and are free from threats, harassment or
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          2  intimidation aimed at inducing or attempting them to

          3  avoid or seek testifying at hearings of the Council.

          4                 Intro 260 will provide protection for

          5  those who testify and punish those who seek to

          6  subvert the participation of others.

          7                 In short, Intro. 260 would protect

          8  the integrity of the political and democratic

          9  process.

         10                 While we support Intro. 260 and urge

         11  the Council to pass the legislation, I do think

         12  serious consideration should be given to the DOI's

         13  testimony and to the interaction with Whistleblower

         14  Protection Laws.

         15                 However, regardless of whether DOI

         16  investigations could potentially be compromised,

         17  harassments, threats and intimidation should never

         18  be tolerated, and I think that this bill, while it

         19  maybe could be more carefully crafted to avoid

         20  conflicts with the Whistleblower Protection laws

         21  goes above and beyond Whistleblower Protection

         22  activities and provides protection for people who

         23  would never ordinarily go through that process, and

         24  I think that's important.

         25                 And with that said, I think, you
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          2  know, I'll be the first to admit that I don't know

          3  the jurisdiction of the Council in this matter, but

          4  potentially they should be expanded beyond just City

          5  Council hearings and should apply to community board

          6  meetings and hearings, to Conflicts of Interest

          7  Board and other government entities to ensure that

          8  people are free from harassment and intimidation are

          9  willing to step forward and give testimony.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I thank you. I

         12  just want to introduce Council Member Seabrook, and

         13  we had Council Member Dilan walked in earlier and

         14  Council Member Dickens, unfortunately, or

         15  fortunately, the budget negotiations are going on

         16  simultaneously, and that in order for the budget to

         17  be passed, which must be passed soon, and this bill

         18  is not going to be passed as soon as the budget, so

         19  we appreciate the fact that you're able to stop by

         20  for a moment, and go get money for us, you know? And

         21  for the people that need it.

         22                 You know, Citizens Union does

         23  wonderful work. Very, very great admiration for the

         24  work that you do, and want to, again, put you on the

         25  spot as well, to craft, you know, draft anything

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  that you think in response, and any suggestions,

          3  including the one that is very interesting that you

          4  just mentioned, to broaden it in certain ways to

          5  have community board people to come and testify or

          6  otherwise, and also help us respond to some of the

          7  testimony that the Commissioner gave. For the things

          8  that you agree, say that you agree. You know, we're

          9  not only asking you to draft something that agrees

         10  with everything you want, if you feel strongly, some

         11  of the issues that you just mentioned, that you

         12  agree with some of what the Commissioner mentioned,

         13  so that would help us tighten up the bill and sort

         14  of get rid of the things that are really not good

         15  and leave the stuff that really is good, and we

         16  appreciate it. If you can do that soon, before the

         17  budget, it doesn't have to be before the budget.

         18                 MR. ISRAEL: Okay, absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: We would

         20  appreciate that very much.

         21                 MR. ISRAEL: Her testimony is

         22  something that we didn't foresee, but it's something

         23  we will consider and provide feedback to you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes, I would

         25  appreciate that very much. Thank you.
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          2                 Next.

          3                 MR. BERMAN: Chairman Felder, Council

          4  members, good afternoon. My name is Jeremy Berman.

          5  I'm appearing on behalf of the New York City Bar

          6  Association.

          7                 The Bar Association is grateful to

          8  share its views on Introductory Bill 260. The

          9  Association believes that adoption of this

         10  legislation is important on multiple levels. I would

         11  like to outline the most compelling arguments for

         12  passage of the bill.

         13                 First, the quality of Council

         14  deliberations and decisions turns on your receiving

         15  accurate and objective testimony from witnesses.

         16  Reliance on the veracity of witnesses' testimony is

         17  important for the effective functioning of the

         18  Council.

         19                 However, permitting an individual or

         20  a company to shape or manipulate a witness'

         21  testimony by threats undermines the integrity of

         22  Council proceedings.

         23                 Indeed, the testimony of witnesses

         24  vulnerable to economic or physical coercion will be

         25  greeted skeptically, whether or not suspicion is
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          2  warranted. Equally worrisome, the Council may

          3  legislate based on spurious testimony, risking

          4  misguided policy decisions.

          5                 Misinformation is not the only threat

          6  presented by economic reprisals against Council

          7  witnesses. An employee fearful of retaliatory

          8  termination by her employer, or physical violence by

          9  another individual, might forego testifying

         10  altogether.

         11                 The District of Columbia Court of

         12  Appeals emphasized that modern America "is a nation

         13  of employees. We are dependent upon others for our

         14  means of livelihood, and most of our people have

         15  become completely dependent on wages. If they lose

         16  their jobs they lose every resource."

         17                 An employee fearful of vindictive

         18  discharge will pause long before addressing this or

         19  any other committee, particularly when her family's

         20  very well-being hangs in the balance.

         21                 Indeed, the peril to the public

         22  discourse when private corporations and public

         23  employers silence their workers is real. As Justice

         24  Black observed over half a century ago, the First

         25  Amendment "rests on the assumption that the widest
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          2  possible dissemination of information from diverse

          3  and antagonistic sources is essential to the welfare

          4  of the public." Chief Justice Warren several years

          5  later declared, "the central commitment of the First

          6  Amendment is that debate on public issues should be

          7  uninhibited, robust, and wide open. The threat here

          8  is especially serious because the testimony

          9  employers seek to suppress is often highly

         10  significant. Indeed, the aggressive measures taken

         11  to discourage witnesses from presenting testimony is

         12  the best evidence of its value to the legislative

         13  process.

         14                 Intimidation of prospective

         15  witnesses, threatens First Amendment rights in a

         16  more fundamental way. Indeed, economic or physical

         17  coercion of prospective witnesses represents a

         18  qualitatively different danger than, for example, a

         19  restriction on marching in the public square or

         20  distributing pamphlets to fellow citizens. Issues

         21  addressed by the Council are almost inevitably of

         22  considerable public significance.

         23                 Council members often rely heavily on

         24  this testimony. As Alexander Meiklejohn declared

         25  "What is essential is not that everyone shall
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          2  speak, but that everything worth saying shall be

          3  said." Testimony before the Council on pressing

          4  public issues surely qualifies as a thing worth

          5  saying.

          6                 The Council's reliance on committee

          7  testimony stems in part from the fact that

          8  committees select witnesses perceived as

          9  representatives of a larger class of individuals or

         10  stakeholders. Thus, the selected witness' testimony

         11  effectively enables a wider collective to exercise

         12  its First Amendment rights and directly communicate

         13  with elected representatives. Intimidation of

         14  committee witness, therefore, not only limits the

         15  witness' ability to air her concerns, but also

         16  effectively precludes a broader constituency from

         17  participating meaningfully in the political process.

         18                 The penalty enhancements contained in

         19  the bill will help deter companies contemplating

         20  retaliation against employees who testify before

         21  this or other committees. The bill provides strong

         22  penalties, including a maximum fine of $1,000 and a

         23  maximum incarceration period of up to one year.

         24  Private or public employers wishing to discourage a

         25  courageous employee from testifying before this or
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          2  any other committee will pause long and hard before

          3  taking any action.

          4                 Finally, and equally significantly,

          5  the bill acknowledges that creative employers

          6  possess an endless variety of stratagems to dissuade

          7  prospective witnesses from testifying. Outright

          8  discharge and demotion are not the exclusive method

          9  to influence an employee's testimony. Transfer to

         10  another department, a substantial reduction in

         11  salary or professional responsibilities, negative

         12  performance evaluations, exclusion from training

         13  opportunities, and verbal harassment are just a few

         14  of the ways imaginative employers can communicate

         15  their disapproval.

         16                 The bill squarely addresses this

         17  reality, adopting the broad definition of adverse

         18  personnel action, found in Section 12-113 of the New

         19  York City Administrative Code. Thus, employers face

         20  criminal liability not only when they threaten

         21  dismissal, demotion or salary reductions to silence

         22  a witness, but also when they fail to promote her,

         23  deprive her of office staff, space or equipment, or

         24  reassign her to another department.

         25                 Thank you again, Chairman Felder, for
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          2  the opportunity to express the Association's strong

          3  support for this legislation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 A few questions, please. Are there

          7  any instances in which you think the law should be

          8  narrowed? For example, should the law apply to

          9  someone who gratuitously gets up at a hearing and

         10  bashes the employer in some way that has nothing to

         11  do with whatever is going on?

         12                 MR. BERMAN: That's a very interesting

         13  question. You know, I would sort of liken that to

         14  liable law, where, for example, the press is

         15  generally protected, but under the Supreme Court's

         16  decisions and other cases, if the press acts in a

         17  wholly reckless or malicious manner, then I think

         18  that the carve out probably would be appropriate.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay.

         20                 Do you know whether there are any

         21  other --  I'm sorry.

         22                 MR. BERMAN: As I'm saying that I'm

         23  thinking there's also, and I would have to research

         24  this, the immunities afforded to witnesses

         25  testifying in hearings, and I'm sure that -- I'm not

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  sure, but this issue may have come up in cases of

          3  people testifying before Congressional hearings, and

          4  analysis of the caselaw on protections afforded

          5  witnesses in that context I think would be helpful

          6  to help for answering that question.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, that was my

          8  next question. You weren't supposed to answer that

          9  yet.

         10                 MR. BERMAN: Sorry.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I was going to

         12  ask you whether you're familiar with any other

         13  jurisdictions that afford some of the same

         14  protections that we're talking about in general,

         15  but, you know, this question as well.

         16                 So, you already answered that. You're

         17  going to also do the work for us. And we appreciate

         18  that.

         19                 MR. BERMAN: Right. I know there's at

         20  least, I will do the research, but I know in the

         21  District of Columbia this has been recognized as

         22  sort of an exception to the at will doctrine, so

         23  that normally in the context of a private employer,

         24  they can fire an employee at will. There's an

         25  exception, though, and this has been enacted by

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  legislation in District of Columbia that when an

          3  employee testifies in front of a committee, and is

          4  an effective whistleblower, then the courts have

          5  found that there's public policy protecting the

          6  employee from the at will doctrine.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do you have any

          8  suggestions about how Intro. 260 should be

          9  adjudicated?

         10                 MR. BERMAN: In case it came up and

         11  somebody challenged it as constitutional? I think,

         12  you know, I'd --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You don't have to

         14  answer now. I'm just giving you all the homework.

         15                 MR. BERMAN: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm just giving

         17  you some other things. We have a wonderful staff

         18  here, and the Council is extraordinary, but to do

         19  this successfully, if we can have everybody else do

         20  a lot of the work and then we're going to

         21  consolidate. That's what we're going to do. We're

         22  going to take the research that everyone, you know,

         23  the Citzens Union, UFT and you, and some of the

         24  other testimony, try to come up with something that

         25  looks like the areas where everybody agrees on to
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          2  have a bill that makes sense. And, again, you know,

          3  you don't have to answer now, but what outreach you

          4  think would be necessary to ensure that witnesses

          5  are aware of this. And some of the questions I just

          6  raised I asked Mr. Berman, but I would appreciate it

          7  if all of you. You may have already decided on some

          8  of these issues in responding to us, but if you can

          9  answer some of these as well, we would appreciate it

         10  very much.

         11                 MR. BERMAN: I'd be happy to hit the

         12  books and the Lexus machine and answer your

         13  questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: And we appreciate

         15  it, because it's not billable hours to us.

         16                 MR. BERMAN: Not to me either.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I know.

         18                 Well, in any case, I want to thank

         19  all of you. I didn't compliment the Bar Association,

         20  and I'm not going to, even though I have nice things

         21  to say, because people are going to start thinking

         22  that I just like to say nice things about everybody.

         23  So, I'm not going to say anything nice about the Bar

         24  Association.

         25                 MR. BERMAN: No offense taken.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay? Thank you

          3  very much for your testimony.

          4                 The next and last panel that we have

          5  include Amy Schwartz, Executive Director of the

          6  Public Health Association, and Darryl -- how is it

          7  pronounced? Chalmers, okay. And Louis Colon,

          8  delegate and president of Chapter 21 of the

          9  Uniformed Fire Protection Inspectors, Local 375.

         10                 I just want to introduce Council

         11  Member Dickens, who joined us again. Very much

         12  appreciate your being here, despite your very hectic

         13  schedule with the budget.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you.

         15  Thank you so much, Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do you have any

         17  questions?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Not at this

         19  time, but I'd like to reserve that right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You got it. Any

         21  time. Any time.

         22                 Where is the other? Is there an Amy

         23  Schwartz here? Or did I scare her away? Okay,

         24  whenever you're ready, come out.

         25                 My legislative aide wants to know if
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          2  that counts as intimidation under the new law.

          3                 MR. CHALMERS: I'm Darryl Chalmers.

          4  I'm the President for the Uniformed Fire Protection

          5  Inspectors, the New York City Fire Department.

          6                 I'm for this bill. And I testified at

          7  the last hearing for Ms. Quinn for this bill, now

          8  the Speaker. The reason why is that with City

          9  agencies, the problem is as far as the attorney just

         10  spoke, that a manager or management or a

         11  commissioner can take the role of saying, you know,

         12  you've been speaking out about the agency in certain

         13  policies that could be dangerous, but this is what

         14  we want to do based on budget or whatever, so we'll

         15  decide to move you over here and you over there.

         16                 But I also have to consider what

         17  Commissioner Rose Gill Hearn has stated from DOI,

         18  because that's very important, too.

         19                 If there's an investigation as far as

         20  corruption with my guys or the inspectors or my

         21  ladies, I feel that there definitely should be a

         22  full investigation with DOI and it should not

         23  interfere with City Council at all. I believe that

         24  because there might be some type of gratuity or

         25  anything illegal. And under this Commissioner, under
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          2  Gill Hearn, I deal with some of her investigators,

          3  and we have a real good relationship. We have an

          4  excellent relationship. It's not like the past

          5  administration before. So, I think it has gotten a

          6  little bit better and I think we have to consider

          7  some of her questions that she has as far as this

          8  bill is concerned. I am still for the bill, and I'm

          9  not going to back down on that, and that's because

         10  you do have a lot of problems with the City

         11  agencies. It's not, if you notice, only a few of us

         12  showed up because of fear still, you have to

         13  understand that.

         14                 So, I'm for the bill, and that's it.

         15                 If you have any questions, you can

         16  ask me any questions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Council Member

         18  Dickens.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

         20  Chair Felder.

         21                 I don't have any questions, I just

         22  wanted to please ask that you please forgive me and

         23  those that came down to testify, that this is very

         24  important, this is a very important issue. I am not

         25  taking it lightly. I might be negligent on this
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          2  issue, but this is budget time, I am on the budget

          3  negotiating team, and I have a Health Committee

          4  going on at the same time. Three things all at the

          5  same time. So, I ask your indulgence, and I ask my

          6  Committee members and my Chair to please bear

          7  indulgence with me, as I exit and come back into the

          8  room.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You are hereby

         10  forgiven. And I just want to mention for the public

         11  that Council Member Dickens, is one of the few, if

         12  not the only, member of this Committee that normally

         13  attends the hearings from beginning to end. So, any

         14  time she is not here, it's for a very, very good

         15  reason. We appreciate that.

         16                 We appreciate the fact that you're

         17  busy.

         18                 To the witness, I just wanted to say

         19  that it sounded like, you know, there's an old joke,

         20  this husband and wife go to the rabbi and they're

         21  arguing, and the rabbi listens to the husband and

         22  says you're right, and then the wife comes in and he

         23  says, you know, you're right, and he says what do

         24  you mean, we can't both be right. And somebody else

         25  says and he says, you know, you're right as well.

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  Now, it sounds to me in this case it makes sense. It

          3  sounds to me that you're in favor of the bill, but

          4  you feel that there are certain changes that should

          5  be made to address some of the concerns that the

          6  Commissioner raised; would that be accurate?

          7                 MR. CHALMERS: That's correct. That's

          8  correct. I agree there are certain things based on,

          9  as far as my guys that I represent, as far as the

         10  uniformed inspectors for the New York City Fire

         11  Department and the work that we do, definitely if

         12  there is a problem with gratuity or anything like

         13  that, or any situation where there need to be an

         14  investigation by a DOI, we have to be protective

         15  about that. We have to use wisdom in this situation.

         16                 At the other onset about that is that

         17  you also have management and commissioners.

         18                 I'll give you a perfect example.

         19  Let's say a group of people are coming out and they

         20  come to City Council and they make a testimony about

         21  a certain situation about an agency.

         22                 Now, let's say a negotiation time

         23  comes. Sometimes the agency says, you know

         24  something? I remember that testimony these guys

         25  made, those young ladies made last year, little kind
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          2  of stifling. I mean, sometimes there's certain

          3  practices that they use that City Council does need

          4  to come in and investigate that they're protected.

          5  Because everything is not going to be corruption,

          6  you understand what I'm saying? Some things may be

          7  are just going to be actually as the attorney said

          8  before from the Bar Association, that it's

          9  harassment. Some people will be harassed by

         10  management, and sometimes those harassment DOI can't

         11  get involved because they say, well that's

         12  procedure. They can transfer you here. They can do

         13  this to you here, but in all actuality they've never

         14  been transferred in 15, 20 years, but now all of a

         15  sudden they're transferred. On law they can be, but

         16  that can still be considered harassment.

         17                 So, you have to look at it on both

         18  sides.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: We appreciate

         20  your testimony very, very much. In fact, something

         21  that you said that really I think is one of the most

         22  compelling reasons to draft a bill is what you said

         23  a few minutes ago, is the fact that there are so few

         24  people here. That's proof to the fact that they are

         25  concerned about coming forth and testifying. You
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          2  know, the examples you gave. So you have proven that

          3  there's a need for the bill.

          4                 I hope that your coming here today

          5  doesn't hurt you in any way.

          6                 MR. CHALMERS: Well, if I am, I will

          7  definitely be back.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: But you should

          9  let us know. You should let us know.

         10                 MR. CHALMERS: I will.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Because if anyone

         12  starts up with him -- I thank you for your testimony

         13  very much.

         14                 MR. CHALMERS: Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I just have to

         16  read something into the record before we close the

         17  hearing.

         18                 If we had to read it into the record,

         19  you have to read it.

         20                 MS. JOHNSON: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: They haven't

         22  heard from you anyway.

         23                 MS. JOHNSON: I'm just going to read a

         24  statement from Ed Ott, Director of Public Policy for

         25  the New York City Central Labor Council into the
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          2  record. He unfortunately was unable to be present

          3  today to testify.

          4                 His testimony reads:

          5                 A year ago I testified that this

          6  Whistleblower Protection for people who testify

          7  before the City Council goes to the heart of the

          8  power of the Council, which is oversight.

          9                 If people come to testify before this

         10  City Council on issues of public policy or law, they

         11  need to be protected from reprisals.

         12                 Effectively what we are saying is

         13  that if a working person comes before the Council

         14  and the employer takes action against them, it is

         15  essential that the City Council has the power to

         16  protect that worker.

         17                 There are three areas that need to be

         18  clear in the bill. One, the ability to codify in the

         19  law and to outline protections for any witness from

         20  reprisal from an employer or anyone else.

         21                 Two, the enforcement of the laws that

         22  need to be defined.

         23                 Three, clear penalties should be

         24  outlined in the law for the employer.

         25                 For instance, the barring from the
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          2  participation in City contracts for a period of

          3  time, the removal or reduction of tax breaks or

          4  other benefits derived from the City that the

          5  employer may have that violates the Council

          6  oversight laws or fines.

          7                 Once again, my apologies for not

          8  being able to attend this important hearing in

          9  person. However, I am happy to work with any Council

         10  member or Council staff on this issue.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 Hearing is hereby concluded.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 2:10 p.m.)
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